UNITED
NATIONS C R C

\‘:\\ﬁ/ Convention on the D ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 565

30 Septenber 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Twent y- second session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 565t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 23 Septenber 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: Ms. MO
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Second periodic report of the Russian Federation (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99- 44366 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Second periodic report of the Russian Federation (continued)
((CRC/ C/ 65/ Add. 5; CRC/ C/Q RUS/ 2; HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 52/ Rev. 1); witten
replies of the Governnent of the Russian Federation to questions in the
list of issues [docunment with no symbol])

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the menbers of the del egation of
the Russian Federation resuned their places at the Committee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON invited the del egation to respond to the questions
rai sed by Comm ttee nmenbers.

3. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation), replying to a question from

Ms. Karp on the benefits system said that the nmain form of assistance for
children with famlies until August 1999 had been a nonthly all owance for each
child. However, allowances were currently paid only to famlies with children
whose per capita incone put them below the poverty line, as a tenporary
measure from August until January 2000, when it was hoped to revert to the
original system That nmeasure had been taken because many regi ons, despite
receiving funds fromthe Federal CGovernnment for the purpose, had failed to
nmeet their obligations to children; the Federal Government had therefore been
obliged to provide 7 billion roubles to nmake good that deficiency to fanmlies
living below the poverty line. It had also decided to conclude an agreenent
with each region for repaynment of their child-benefit debts for the previous
period. While financial problenms persisted, it was encouragi ng that arrears
in payments of ol d-age pensions and social welfare grants had been cl eared.

4, There was al so a new type of benefit for poor famlies with or wthout
children, for which pilot projects had been |launched in three regions with
Worl d Bank [ oans, and it was planned to extend it to the entire country. A
third system of benefits targeted needy famlies at the |local and regiona
levels. Since it varied fromregion to region, and given the Cormmttee’s
concern that all children should have the same opportunities to enjoy their
rights, the Governnent would use its regional assistance funds to make

provi sion nmore equitable. The “Children of Russia” programe included a
programe, “Children of the North”, under which additional investnents were
made to provide nmedical care for children living in small villages in renote
areas. The Federal Governnent al so provi ded assistance with access to clinics
for Chernobyl children and those living in other ecologically threatened
areas, the cost of which could not be borne exclusively by the regions.

5. To the question concerning the use of international aid for resolving
children's problens, she said that numerous nonitoring nmechani snms were in
place. In any event, Russia, at |least in the nodern era, was perpetually

scrutini zed by many international organizations. The Federal Governnment also
i ntended to establish the post of Conm ssioner for the R ghts of the Child.
The prerequisites existed in the formof support fromthe public,

non- gover nnent al organi zati ons and the authorities, and currently the
political wll.



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 3

6. In the previous five years, over 2,000 |ocal and regional social service
institutions involved with famlies, wonen and children had been established.
Where federal agencies existed, they focused on training staff for those
institutions, although a federal social service and support programre for

i nstitutions providing such services to famlies, women and children had

exi sted since 1993. The regions received assistance fromthe Federa
Governnment in the formof rehabilitation equipnent, specialist training, and
education for wonen, children and fanmlies. While efficient conplaint
mechani sms exi sted, the del egati on agreed that an i ndependent nonitoring
agency shoul d be created to supplenent the existing ones. Conplaints agai nst
the police were heard by an i ndependent court and there was strict control of
the organs of the O fice of the Federal Procurator-General. The Mnistry of
Foreign Affairs had recently established a self-monitoring system closely
scrutinizing security within its own systemand investigating all conplaints
of abuse of police authority.

7. A 1998 federal |aw on the guarantees of the rights of the child
established the rights of children in institutions, hospitals and schools to
peri odi ¢ assessnent of State services provided for them and of the nmain

i ndicators of quality of life. The assessnent was conducted by authorized
bodi es, at the request of children or their | egal representatives. Pursuant
to article 25 of the Convention, under Russian law failure by officials to
fulfil requirenents adequately or to address any deficiencies entailed | ega
liability.

8. To the question on the Russian Federation's inplenmentation of the
United Nations Convention against Torture, responsibility for the crimna
justice system had been transferred fromthe Mnistry of the Interior to the
M nistry of Justice. Two juvenile correctional facilities had been set up
and the Governnment had decided to split theminto smaller units and | ocate
them nearer to the children's hones in order to facilitate famly visits. A
bill had been prepared for the elinm nation of the strict-reginme colonies for
children and teenagers, which were generally not independent and had been
originally intended for adult offenders.

9. There had been two questions concerni ng sex education for Russian
teenagers: one on federal fam |y planning, the other on sex education

met hods. The “Family Pl anni ng” progranme was directed mainly at devel oping a
nmodern system of sex education throughout the Russian Federation. Financing,
especially for abortions and other operations, had been allocated to the “Safe
nmot her hood” programe. The idea of sex education in Russian schools had been
politicized and had nmet with fierce criticismfromnmenbers of the “leftist
opposition” in the State Duma and fromthe Church. The Mnistry of Education
nonet hel ess considered it necessary for children to be suitably informed. It
was therefore exam ning textbook content and woul d accord higher priority to
sex education in a course on the main aspects of safe living, as it would to
the activities of the country's nore than 500 nedi cal and psychol ogi ca
centres. Work was underway for publication of a manual to help parents supply
such education, as well as sex-education packages that teenagers could consult
in private rather than in large auditoria. For purposes of AIDS and drug
abuse prevention, children needed to have a clear view of the dangers they
faced.



CRC/ T/ SR. 565
page 4

10. On the question of ethnic mnorities, she drew menbers' attention to the
federal National-Cultural Autonony Act, in which various rights of ethnic
mnorities were enshrined. Educational services conprised a federa

conmponent, as well as a national conmponent which allowed ethnic mnorities to
preserve their traditions, |anguage and environment. Instruction was
currently inparted in 26 of Russia's 75 national |anguages. Funds for

t ext books fromthe Russian Federal budget were allocated exclusively to
school s attended by small ethnic groups of the Far North, so that they would
not forget their own | anguage. Measures were also being taken to ensure that
they had access to higher and specialized m ddl e education

11. In response to Ms. Sardenberg s question concerning the coordinating
mechani sm the del egation agreed with the assessnent of the national report
under di scussion as a neans of evaluating the status of children and of
nmobi | i zi ng resources for its enhancenent. The aforenentioned

I nterdepartnmental Comm ssion coordinated the work of all agencies. For
exanple, in the Governnment’s recent debate on the question of preventing

| aw breaki ng, its approach had been based on a series of neasures previously
coordi nated by that Conm ssion, apprising the Governnment of each agency’s role
when it encountered such phenonena as | arge nunbers of orphans in a given city
or region. VWhile the role played by the Mnistry of the Interior was |ess
conspi cuous than previously, many of its enpl oyees still needed to be briefed
on ways of dealing with street children, who were required by |law to be placed
in protection centres. Every effort was nade to |ocate their relatives or
place themin foster famlies if they had been abandoned. There were
insufficient institutions dealing with street children, nost of whomin Mscow
originated in the countries of the Commonweal th of Independent States (ClIS),
and the Governnent cared for themthrough the social protection agencies.

12. Concerning the accuracy of the national report submitted, she said that
it was not easy to reflect everything pertaining to all the republics and
regions in a single docunent. Since the country would be submtting further
reports, it would use the opportunity to supplenent earlier information and
respond more fully to the Comrittee' s questions. After the drafting of the
periodic report, a national plan of action for inplementation of the
Conventi on had been established and account would be taken of Conmittee
menbers’ comrents and concerns in that context.

13. Wth regard to disabl ed or orphaned children, she said there was
constant press coverage on the status of children, especially vul nerable
children, so that the public was kept infornmed. Wth UNI CEF assistance, a
start had been made in 1999 on nonitoring inplenentation of the Convention
and the services of educators and psychol ogi sts were being solicited.

14. In reply to the question concerning the status of girls in rural areas,
she said that since children in rural areas were probably nore discrim nated
agai nst than their urban counterparts, a programre for rural schools had been
instituted to bring theminto line with those in urban areas. 1In an effort to
ensure that the very high statistics for children conpleting primry and
secondary education in Russia should also pertain to vocational and technica
education, assistance was being given to enable rural children to enrol. The



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 5

probl em of prostitution of young girls was no worse in rural than in urban
areas; throughout the Russian Federation as a whole imorality was nore rife
in large cities.

15. M. BOYCHENKO (Russi an Federation), replying to Ms. Sardenberg’s
guestion concerning the followup to the visit of the United Nations

Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights to the Russian Federation in June, said the
| atter had appl auded the creation of the special Interdepartnmental Comm ssion
on Juvenile Affairs, conprising heads of |aw enforcenment agencies and ot her
departnments, who met regularly to discuss inter alia ways of reducing
sentences and custodi al detention. Specific neasures had been proposed to
take account of the Hi gh Conmi ssioner’s observations during her talks with
Governnment officials, particularly on the status of disabled children in
speci al hones and the reduction of pre-trial detention. One comrent nade by
the Hi gh Commi ssioner had al ready been acted upon by the Procurator-General of
the Republic: persons in temporary detention, including juveniles, were
entitled to be medically examned if there were grounds for thinking that they
were being ill-treated. In the context of the Hi gh Comm ssioner’s talks with
governnment officials, a draft for the devel opnent of human rights education
had been signed, an anbitious project covering three years and designed to
strengthen national capacity in that area, with particular focus on
teacher-training colleges. The intention was to set up a national network of
NGOs with a view to adoption of a State human rights educati on progranme.

16. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation), in response to a question from

M's. Quedraogo, said that a subprogramme to address the problem of disabled or
invalid children involved the screening of pregnant women anong ot her things,
and covered a high percentage of wonmen and children. The problens associ ated
with rural areas and the Far North precluded total coverage, but those were
bei ng addressed by the establishnent of genetic nmedical centres in, for the
time being, places with inadequate infrastructure. Diagnostic centres had
been set up for early detection of the causes of disabilities, so that
children’s needs could be pronptly net.

17. Concerning relations with the famlies of children in care, she said
that they could visit freely and 30 per cent of parents did so. Wth others,
however, who had permanently abandoned their children, |inks had been severed.

A network of centres hel ped famlies raise disabled children at hone,
encouraged caring in nothers and tried to rehabilitate the child or help the
nmot her find work, preferably part-tine. Every effort was being made to
provi de alternative forns of care

18. In answer to M. Rabah's question on the right of children to be

heard, she said the Mnistry of Education had encouraged educati ona
establishnments to make sure that children's views were taken into account.
There were 72 regional newspapers and organi zati ons whi ch expressed
children's views and some 15 regional television studios allowed children

to voice opinions. Children fromthe age of six upwards m ght be invited

by magi strates to attend judicial proceedings acconmpanied by famly
representatives and fromthe age of 10 onwards could have their views conveyed
by a | egal representative. She recognized that those measures did not yet go
far enough and the Mnistry of Education was planning to establish regi ona
children's rights offices.



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 6

19. Cor poral punishnment was prohibited in all educational establishnents.

It was of course inpossible to state categorically that it was not inflicted,
but councils had been set up recently by presidential decree that woul d enabl e
speedy action to be taken by the school administration if cases of corpora
puni shment di d occur

20. The situation of children in Chechnya was unclear at present, since the
territory had not recently submtted any information whatever to the federa
authorities. The latter were still fulfilling their obligations by paying out

child benefits to Chechnya, although the benefits did not always reach those
entitled to receive them The Russian Federation was trying to respond
positively to all requests for assistance for children in that region. Al
requests fromthe Chechnya authorities for children to receive health care in
centres in the Russian Federation had been granted. Such care included
operations and care for the disabled or for those injured during mlitary
conflict. She undertook to send further information to the Comrittee as it
was received

21. There was a great deal of information regarding mnors in educationa
colonies, State farms and other such institutions, which would be better
transmitted to the Cormittee in witing.

22. M. DOEK, referring to the Government's reply to question 17 on the |ist
of issues, asked what the difference between “foster fanmlies” and “receiving
famlies” was. Wth regard to the reformof alternative care, he asked

whet her the Government had any nmajor programme to deinstitutionalize child
protection and devel op the system of foster care and adoption

23. Referring to the Government's reply to question 16, he said that an
annual increase of 70 per cent in intercountry adoptions was rather worrying.
According to information received, some 100,000 children were avail able for
adoption in the Russian Federation. There was also information about the
possibility of abuse of intercountry adoption schemes, particularly in the
form of paynment being made for Russian Federation children who then went to
western countries. Wat neasures were being taken to prevent that practice?
More general ly, what was being done to pronote the adoption of children within
the Russian Federation itsel f?

24. He noted fromthe reply to question 6 that the President of the
Russi an Federation placed a high priority on the prevention of child neglect.
How much noney had been allocated to the programre to conmbat negl ect; what
bodi es were involved in inplementing the programre; and what neasures were
bei ng taken to prevent child neglect, which seenmed to be a major problemin
the Russi an Federation?

25. Wth regard to children with disabilities, he asked what was bei ng done
to increase their access to regular education, the rate of which was stil
very | ow.

26. He noted that unacconpani ed refugee children were all owed access to
health and education only if they had refugee or displaced person status. He
wonder ed how that was defined and whether the Russian Federation planned to
change that regulation in any way. It seemed fromarticle 16 of the federa



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 7

law on citizenship that any child on Russian Federation territory whose
parents were both unknown had Russian nationality. To what extent did that
apply to unacconpani ed children who had fled to the Russian Federation?

27. Regardi ng child | abour, he said there was information to suggest that,
as a result of the economic crisis, children found thensel ves obliged to work
to generate inconme and trade unions feared that the nunbers of working
children m ght increase as a result. Was the Governnment aware of that

devel opnent and did it have plans to prevent it?

28. Ms. EL-GUI NDI asked what neasures were being taken to regul ate adoption
putting the best interests of the children first. Wth regard to health,

i nformati on showed that the nortality rate for under-fives had not inproved
in recent years and that the 1995 national nutrition survey showed that

4 per cent of that group of children were suffering frommalnutrition.

In 1998, nore than twice as many children had been found to be suffering from
tubercul osis than in 1991, and there had been a 6.6 per cent increase in the
nunber of children suffering fromtubercul osis between 1997 and 1998. She
wonder ed therefore what nmeasures were being taken to protect the resources

all ocated for children's health care fromthe inpact of budget cuts.

29. Ms. KARP said that her earlier question had concerned not a nonitoring
system but the possibility of international technical assistance in relation
to di sabled children, under article 23, paragraph 4 of the Convention. An
exchange of information from other experiences mght be of great inportance to
the Russian Federation as it went about building new institutions.

30. She noted with satisfaction that social services were becom ng nore
famly- and conmunity-based, particularly counselling services, with the aim
of dealing with children in the way envisaged in the Convention, nanely

t hrough di al ogue. She wondered what neasures were being taken to conbat
domestic viol ence agai nst wonen, for example through public canpaigns
encouragi ng wonen to report incidents. According to a recent BBC tel evision
programe, Russian wonen did not conplain about domestic violence, because
they saw it as nornmal. Donestic violence had a destructive psychol ogi ca
effect on children, and she wondered what structures existed to enmpower wonen
in that regard: were there special police investigators who took wonen's
conpl aints seriously? How was society dealing with the probl enf

31. It was inportant to remenber that treating neglected children or
juvenil e delinquents was not the same as treating the victins of sexual abuse.
Did victins of sexual abuse, particularly abuse within the fanmly receive

prof essional treatnment? Were there any special court procedures for hearing
children's conmplaints and hel ping themto give evidence? In short, had

mul tidi sciplinary nethods been devel oped to deal wi th sexual abuse?

32. Inits witten replies, the Russian Federation had reported that
accession to the Hague Convention on the abduction of children m ght be

agai nst Russian law, since it was not an offence for one parent to take
custody of a child. The child had, however, the right to a relationship with
bot h parents and abduction by one parent violated that right. How did the
Crimnal Code fornalize that aspect of children's rights?



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 8

33. She understood that the responsibility for education had been shifted
fromthe Mnistry of Education to parents and that the school drop-out rate
had subsequently increased. Was there any intention to reconsider that

al l ocation of responsibility, particularly in view of the fact that, at a tinme
of economic crisis, famlies mght prefer children to go to work? How did the
Government protect children so that they could continue their education?

34. Wth regard to the juvenile justice system she said that, although as a
general rule nobody could be detained for nmore than 48 hours before trial
there was a Presidential Decree that all owed detention incomuni cado for up

to 30 days and she wondered if that applied to children also. She requested
clarification of the situation whereby it was the judge who deci ded on
detention but the prosecutor who decided on pre-trial detention and appeals.
She wel coned the new | aw on sentenci ng but she wondered whet her the

Russi an Federation had established mechani sns to make it possible to pass
alternative or conditional sentences such as probation. If so, to what extent
were such mechani sms generalized?

35. She pointed out that, although 11 to 14 year olds were not crimnally
liable, they could be subject to adm nistrative detention inposed by
educational institutions rather than courts. She wondered whether there were
any plans to deal with that aspect in forthcom ng |egislation, since
children's rights were violated if they were deprived of their liberty other
than by the courts. |In addition, she asked whether any tine Iimt had been
set for establishing the special juvenile court. She wondered whether a
target date had been set for the reform of education or whether priorities and
procedures still had to be decided. Lastly, she asked whether there was any
nati onal plan of action to inplenent the Agenda for Action of the Wrld
Congress agai nst Commercial Exploitation of Children, held in Stockholm

in 1996.

36. M. RABAH asked whet her there were any special detention centres for
chil dren and whet her police departnments worked together with NGOs involved in
protecting juveniles. Wre there any rehabilitation centres to reform

of fenders, with the invol venrent of social workers or teachers, or any
post-rel ease care schene? He al so wondered whether there was any system of

| egal aid and, lastly, whether there were any statistics on street children
was that an issue or a phenonenon in the Russian Federation and how were they
protected?

37. Ms. SARDENBERG sai d that sexual exploitation in rural areas was of
particul ar i nmportance. The phenomenon was usual ly an urban one but

unenpl oyment in rural areas forced sonme children into prostitution at 12 or 13
years of age. The Conmittee was encouraged by the strong stand being taken in
public awareness and the nedia, but what was really happening? How many

i nvestigations were made? There were so many institutions involved -
institutions for the disabled, education colonies and State farms - not to
mention different mnistries. The Convention should be able to provide the
answers - not just in terns of measures and reform but also a change in
attitude. The institutions thenselves represented a central issue in the area
of child rights in the Russian Federation: their purpose was clear but they
were not in keeping with the spirit of the Convention or with nodern research
on child devel opnent .




CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 9

38. Ms. TIGERSTEDT said that the report had given further detail on drugs,

al cohol and related crime. The penalties for introducing children to drugs
and al cohol had been increased and anti-al cohol propaganda circulated in
schools. But rehabilitation and treatnment were still inadequate. Were there
any supportive or preventive neasures to help famlies before children were
taken by the authorities or went on the streets? Had any studi es been carried
out on al cohol abuse? She al so wondered whether there were any NGGOs |i ke

Al coholics Anonymous to provide individual support or support to help famlies
stay together.

39. Ms. OUEDRAOGO said she would |ike to know what measures were being
taken to Iimt children’s access to the Internet as a means of protecting them
agai nst paedophil e and pornographic networks. The high rate of abortion in
the Russi an Federation was no doubt a threat to wonen’s reproductive health;
were woren bei ng educated about famly planning to discourage them from
resorting to abortion as a means of contraception?

40. Considering the failure of the breastfeeding progranme and the absence
of legislation in that connection, and bearing in mnd the possible harmthe
heavily advertised m |k substitutes m ght pose to children’s health, what was
t he Governnment doing to address that situation? Al so, were students being
taught about accident prevention in an effort to stemthe high occurrence of
acci dents anong young peopl e? Begging seemed to be on the increase; had the
Government taken any steps to protect children against that practice?

41. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation) said that, in the absence of |ega
definitions of prostitution and pornography or a special department devoted to
those issues, it was difficult to evaluate the scope of the problemif indeed,
it did exist. Figures for cases of venereal diseases, sexual violence and
child prostitution were admttedly high but had to be assessed agai nst the
consi derabl e size of the total population. The Russian Interpol office had
provi ded information which confirmed the prostitution of mnors via the
Internet. However, the Governnment had been offered international assistance
to combat the problem

42. Vi ol ence against girls was continually rising. 1In the case of wonen, as
they were still reticent about that kind of abuse, it was difficult for |aw
enforcenent officials to deal with the problem The decision had been taken
to set up crisis centres in each region, especially for wonen and children who
suffered donestic violence, which although small in nunber were staffed by
trai ned professionals. The Commttee would be provided later with information
regardi ng court proceedings instituted agai nst alleged perpetrators of

vi ol ence agai nst wonen.

43. An international agreement with the United States, France,

Great Britain and Canada had been reached at the conclusion of a conference on
rape by famly nenbers, held under the joint patronage of President Yeltsin
and Ms. Hillary dinton.

44, Turning to the correctional system which fell within the mandate of the
M nistry of Justice, she said some centres offered vocational training and



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 10

opportunities for sone occupational activity. There were also possibilities
for visits fromfam |y nmenbers and non-governnental organizations, and sports
facilities were sonetinmes provided.

45, The CHAI RPERSON renmi nded the del egati on of the outstandi ng questions
that remai ned unanswered.

46. Ms. CHEPURNYKH (Russi an Federation) indicated the nunber of children
adopted as well as those who had been placed in educational institutions or
foster homes and said that the Governnent gave priority to parents for the
care of their children. However, where that was not possible, the next
appropriate neasure was i npl enented

47. A federal data bank had been set up to monitor children who had been
either taken into care or adopted. O the total nunber, 10 per cent were
under 6 years of age and the others were aged up to 18 years. Most people
were extrenmely secretive about adoption and preferred to adopt children of 2
years and under. The wait could be very long. Sone people would make contact
wi th pregnant wonen; others would go to a different towmn to adopt a child to
prevent people from knowi ng that the child had been adopted. As a result, it
was very difficult for older children to be adopted. They could be placed in
institutions, foster homes or back in their own famlies but funding remai ned
an obstacle, especially as the Governnent tried to grant the same funding to
famlies as to other forms of care. Adoption was based on a court deci sion
handed down in the geographical area where the child was resident. However,
because there had been cases of illegal adoptions, new | egislation had been
passed to nonitor the licencing of adoption agencies.

48. As a result of the economic crisis in 1998, the nunber of abandoned
children had increased, whereas the nunmber of adoptions had fallen
drastically. In light of the Governnent’s inability to cope with child

benefit paynents, new | egislation had been passed to make parents nore |iable
for the financial support of their children.

49. The system for selecting adoptive parents was quite thorough, involving
t he subm ssion of a considerable nunber of docunments and an exam nation of the
i ncome, housing and health situation of the prospective adoptive parents. As
regards the custody of children when one of the parents lived in a foreign
country, the decision rested with the courts as to where the child should
live. \When they reached the age of 18, children were free to make their own
choice in that regard. Furthernore, the other parent enjoyed an equal right
to be heard in court.

50. As to special education for children with disabilities, a significant
nunber were either placed in specialized schools, such as schools for the
blind, deaf or nentally retarded, or in ordinary schools with a specia
support system However, nore needed to be done for children with Down’s
syndrone and children who were seriously nentally retarded. Parents of
children with special needs had been left the choice as to whether their
children attended a special school or an ordinary school. Access to higher
education had been inproved and the nunber of pre-university colleges had



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 11

risen to 20. The CGovernnment was aware of the inadequacy but hoped that nore
children would be able to benefit fromthe choice of hone-based education
mai nstream educati on or special schools.

51. Hardly any problens arose with regard to the education and health care
of the children of refugees and internally displaced persons, because the
determ ning factor was the child s place of residence. However, there were a
few cities, such as Moscow and St. Petersburg, which required further
attention in that regard.

52. Educati on was conmpul sory for the first nine years of schooling, which
were conpleted by the vast mgjority of children. A considerabl e percentage
even went on to pursue secondary education or vocational training. In

Sept enber 1999, a census had been taken of children in the whol e of the
Russi an Federation, which had reveal ed that a | arge number of children did not
attend school for |ack of neans. Consequently, nmeasures had been introduced
to assist needy famlies. It was hoped that |egislation on the m nimum schoo
age woul d be anended by 2000.

53. There were also centres for children with deviant behaviour. After
three years, if their behaviour was acceptable, the children could be
transferred to ordinary schools. |In addition, the forner closed educationa

institution had been replaced by an open type where juveniles could interact
with other children and even spend time at home, in an attenpt to meke the
system nore hunane.

54, Wth regard to educational reforms, the 12-year school system would not
be introduced for a further 8 years, in order to allowtine for texts to be
prepared and for teachers to be retrained.

55. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation) said that child | abour was a serious
source of concern for the Government. A study by a | abour market research
institute had furnished statistics of the worst forns of child I abour

i ncludi ng prostitution, begging, work at gas stations and on the streets and
in agriculture. A large nunber of juveniles were gainfully enployed by
friends and other adults w thout going through the normal channels for

tenporary work. Information in that connection could be submtted to the
Committee if necessary. Mortality rates continued their dowward trend for
children of all categories, although they were still relatively high. Foreign

techni cal assistance was extended to the Russian Federation in the context of
cooperation projects with a | arge nunber of agencies, in addition to bilatera
agreements.

56. Replying to the question on the Iength of pre-trial detention periods,
t he Government was aware that those periods were sometines too | engthy and
that was one of the objectives of the reforms. Wth respect to substance
abuse, anonynous services existed, although not many. The problem was al so
being dealt with unofficially but neasures were being taken to give officia
status to those services to enhance their efficiency.

57. Ms. Karp had asked about the possibility of establishing a single
structure for the devel opment of social services. Wthin the Mnistry of
Labour and Soci al Devel opnent there was a departnent dealing with matters



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 12

related to fanmily, wonen and children's affairs, which did indeed play a
coordinating role for social services provided to those groups. As for the
gquestion relating to the Internet, she was not in a position to provide
detailed information. However, because the Internet had generally not

devel oped extensively in Russia, no normative neasures had yet been adopted to
protect children from exposure to pornography. Nonethel ess, her del egation
had taken note of the comments of Conmittee nenbers and would take theminto
consideration for the future. The nunber of abortions was decreasing, but was
still very high. The authorities were conscious of the inportance of the
probl em

58. M. DOEK asked what was neant by “socially dangerous acts” when
referring to crimes. The term would appear to be simlar to offences
qualified as “status offences”, for exanple in the United States, whereby a
child s disorderly behaviour was treated as a crine. What exactly was covered
by that concept?

59. The Government of the Russian Federation was apparently not considering
the ratification of the Hague Convention on the Civil Aspects of Internationa
Chil d Abduction of 1980. The office of the public prosecutor had issued an
opi nion against ratification. The international abduction of children was a
serious problem and required effective nmeasures. Above all, it should be
made clear to parents that such acts would not be tolerated. What was the
reason the Russian Governnment had not ratified the Convention?

60. Ms. EL GUI NDI asked for an explanation regarding the fact that
some 55 per cent of teachers in small primary schools had not received higher
educati on.

61. Ms. KARP said that she had received a letter of conplaint fromwonen
living in Orsk who had not received child all owances for over one year. How
did the Government plan to deal with the problemof arrears in the paynent of
child all owances?

62. Ms. SARDENBERG drew the attention of the delegation to the inportance
of the active participation of children in institutions. Wre there any
speci fic mechanisnms allowing children to take part in discussions about

negl ect, abuse and ill-treatnment?

63. Ms. CHEPURNYKH (Russian Federation), replying to an earlier question
said that a “receiving famly” was one whi ch accommobdated a nunber of children
inafamly setting. The use of receiving famlies was quite extensive

t hroughout the country. On the other hand, “foster famlies” were quite new
to the Russian Federation, and were linmted to a few pilot projects in Mscow

and five other regions. In such cases the child' s institution nmade a
financial contribution to the famly in question to assist with the upbringing
of the child. 1In devising a nmethod of assigning children to such hones with a

guarantee of m ninum standards, the authorities were relying heavily on the
experience of the British foster system

64. The lack of juvenile justice legislation was a very serious shortcom ng
of the Russian |egal system and one which needed to be addressed in the near
future. For the tinme being juvenile justice cases were handled in various



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 13

ways. For example, a particular magistrate could be assigned the task of
dealing with juvenile or famly matters. Under a systemset up in the
Lyubertsy district near Moscow, specific juvenile courts heard cases, but that
systemwas still in an experinental stage

65. Wth regard to the Convention on the Cvil Aspects of Internationa

Child Abduction, the Mnistries of Justice, Foreign Affairs, Education, the
Interior and Labour and Soci al Devel opment had all supported ratification, and
it was only the prosecutor’s office that still had doubts. Because 1999 was
an election year, chances of ratification in the near future were slim
However, the nenbers of the Committee should rest assured that the matter
woul d be pursued by the mnistries concerned, and the Conventi on woul d
probably be subnmitted to the Duma followi ng the elections. The Duma woul d
then have to take the final decision based on the cases nade respectively by
the mnistries and the prosecutor’s office.

66. Under the new anendnents to the Crimnal Code, children could be sent to
speci al schools only under a court order, and no | onger on the sole basis of a
deci sion by the comm ssion on juvenile affairs.

67. VWhile the majority of teachers in small primary schools had

recei ved specialized secondary education, npst teacher training in the Russian
Federati on took place at university level, and it was hoped that in the next
five years teacher training programes would be restructured so that not only
all general school teachers, but also all instructors in specific subjects
woul d receive a university education

68. Survival techniques, accident prevention and first aid were taught in
Russi an schools right from ki ndergarten. 1In addition, each school had a

medi cal service, which carried out preventive nmeasures and upheld standards to
prevent illnesses and accidents in the institution

69. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation) said that victinms of sexua
expl oi tation received psychol ogi cal and nedical attention and instruction at
all 700 social centres in the country. |In addition, there were the 37 crisis
centres that had been set up in the various regions, which received both wonen
and children subjected to violence. Over 1,000 social refuges existed for the
homel ess, and all were part of the social services system Children could be
hel d for offences in tenporary isolation centres run by the Mnistry of the
Interior for up to two nonths, and in exceptional cases the prosecutor’s
office could extend the stay still further

70. Breast f eedi ng was, of course, pronoted by gynaecol ogi sts and ot her

medi cal specialists. VWhile no financial incentives were provided, support was
given in the formof explanations of the nedical and affective inportance of
breastfeeding. A UNI CEF programe was under way to devel op nore ways of
pronoti ng breastfeeding.

71. M. BOYCHENKO (Russi an Federation) said that the term“socially
dangerous offence” was basically equivalent to the terns “offence” or “crine”,
and in actual fact did not reflect any kind of judgenment with respect to
social or anti-social behaviour.




CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 14

72. Ms. CHEPURNYKH (Russian Federation), referring to children's
participation, said she could not provide information on the situation in such
institutions as isolation centres. However, she acknow edged that there could
be nore and better participation in certain other institutions, such as
refuges and boardi ng schools, and that it mght be advisable to involve NGOs
in setting up such mechani sms.

73. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation) added that refuges and boarding
schools for nentally or physically handi capped children had no nmechani sm for
the representation of children on their councils. As for the arrears in the
paynment of child all owances, she had earlier acknow edged that the probl em of
del ayed paynments was encountered throughout the country. The del egati on was
prepared to take note of the situation of the famlies concerned and to try to
hel p them recover their dues.

74. The CHAI RPERSON invited Committee nmenbers to nmake prelimnary
observations follow ng the discussion with the del egation of the
Russi an Federati on.

75. Ms. KARP said she wished to express words of encouragenent to all those
who were working to strengthen the rights of the child in the

Russi an Federation, which was undergoing a painful and | ong period of
restructuring and faced a serious economc crisis. The country was on the
right track in establishing new institutions.

76. The di scussion with the del egati on had been very fruitful, and the
Committee’s Concl udi ng Observations, which should be seen as a continuation of
a constructive process of dialogue, would certainly reflect the points raised.
It was heartening that the del egati on acknow edged the problens facing the
country, and especially that its nmenbers were aware of nmany of the measures
that were needed, for exanple in the legislative field. O course, the
appropriation of budgetary support and the allocation of manpower resources
were al so needed. She trusted that the del egati on would publish an account of
its discussion with the Committee, and hoped that the Government woul d report
in 2000 on the progress achieved in the meantine.

77. Ms. SARDENBERG thanked the del egation for its enornmous effort, through
which it had provided a great deal of information. The Convention had an
extrenely denocratic perception of the child in society, and it would be very
beneficial indeed if the Russian Federation took a stand to put children's
rights onto the national agenda. The Covernnent should be encouraged in
particular to address the issue of children' s participation in institutions,
whi ch appeared to be a subject requiring i nrediate action

78. M. RABAH said that his concern was with the lack of a juvenile justice
system The Committee had requested additional information on the
establ i shnment of such a systemin 1993, but still no appropriate |egislation

had been adopted. Hopefully, Russian children would not have to wait another
five years for such |legislation, which was extrenely inportant. |ncarcerating



CRC/ C/ SR. 565
page 15

children in adult institutions was tantamunt to sending themto school s of
crime. The report and discussion had been extremely useful and positive, and
he wi shed the nmenbers of the del egation every success in their work on behalf
of Russian chil dren.

79. Ms. KARELOVA (Russian Federation) said she was pleased with the usefu
exchange of ideas with the Commttee nmenbers. Her del egation understood that
the Russi an Governnent had made some progress, but that a lot nore remained to
be done. Drawing up policy for the rights of the child was an extrenely

di fficult, ongoing process which took tinme, especially where the adoption of

| egi sl ati on was concerned. The constructive dial ogue engaged with the
Committee would very much help the Governnent in its future work.

The neeting rose at 6.00 p.m




